# Southeast Texas Area Assembly of Alcoholics Anonymous



# 2<sup>nd</sup> Quarter Assembly Minutes Saturday & Sunday April 9<sup>th</sup>-10<sup>th</sup>, 2022

Hybrid Meeting Double Tree Hotel Houston Intercontinental Airport 15747 John F Kenned Blvd., Houston, TX 77032

This we owe to A.A.'s future; to place our common welfare first to keep our Fellowship united. For upon A.A. unity depend our lives and the lives of those to come.

## Area Committee Meeting Saturday, April 9th, 2022

### Open of Area Committee Meeting – Christina S.

- Opened meeting with moment of silence followed by the Serenity Prayer
- Welcomed new DCM's

### Preamble to SETA Policies and Procedures Manual - Bella L.

• Read the Preamble to the SETA Policies and Procedures Manual

#### Area Committee Roll Call – Kathleen T.

• See Pages 23-24 for table of Area Committee Roll Call

### Secretary's Minutes - Chelsey G.

January Area Committee Minutes were approved with corrections

### Treasurer's Report - Reino F.

Approved as presented

## 2023 Budget Presented - Ron S.

#### **Unfinished Business**

Open Positions

- La Vina Committee Chair
- Intergrupa Hispano Del SW (D66 & 67)
- Brazos Valley Intergroup

#### New Business

Open Position: Newsletter Editor

## Motion for Assembly Voting by Count Off Method – Kathleen T.

Motion For Assembly Voting by Count-off Method Update the Policy and Procedure Manual (P&P) to incorporate the method for determining the number of voting members present in Assemblies to a count-off method. The Area Registrar shall ensure persons present (virtually or in person) and serving in positions eligible to vote in that Assembly count-off during roll call. Advantages of the proposed method over the current method: • All people present will know with assurance the number of voting members present and how that number was reached • Faster during the Assembly, leaving more time for activities that support our primary purpose • Increases awareness of Assembly voting eligibility • As accurate as the current method • Accommodates counting voting members in-person and online with one method. • Frees time for Registration table volunteers to greet, help with name badges, explain logistics and collect information on Trusted Servants new to their positions The P&P currently states: "The Area Registrar shall

ensure that all voting members are assigned NUMBERED badges upon registering at each quarterly Assembly. The numbered badges assigned will become the roll of qualified voters. Prior to voting, that roll will be called by the Registrar to verify that all are present and to identify any qualified voters missed in the registration process. Attendance by a member of the Assembly will be required for that member to exercise the voting privilege." Motion: Change P&P to read: "The Area Registrar shall ensure that all voting members are present when voting by asking all voting members (virtually and in person) to count-off. "

# The Committee APPROVED this motion by majority vote.

## Motion for Policy and Procedures Editorial Changes – Ron C.

An Adhoc Committee was established by the Area Assembly in October 2021 to review the Policy and Procedure Manual (PP&M). After numerous meetings and much discussion, several changes were suggested. These changes are separated into Editorial Changes that are needed to make the PP&M consistent with current procedures and Policy Changes that we feel are needed to improve the functioning of the Area. If motions are approved, the Adhoc Committee (with the help of the Alt-Chair) will make the changes and present to the Area Assembly no later than the October Assembly. Editorial Changes 1. Change Forward to Foreword. (Page 1) 2. Finance guidelines need to be removed from PP&M and placed in guidelines for Finance Committee. (Page 8-9) This Finance guideline also need to be edited and brought in line with current procedures. Remove the reference of Courts of Common Pleas from Finance guidelines (Court does not exist in Texas) 3. Rewrite Preamble to include reference not only to our primary purpose of electing a delegate but also our responsibility to the fellowship and the groups of Alcoholic Anonymous (page 3). This will help the Area to understand that we also have a responsibility as members of Alcoholic to support the concepts of recovery and unity. 4. Assemblies– (page 6-7) a. needs to reword "quarterly 2-day Assemblies" #1 on page 6 b. include educational and informational workshops and sharing sessions for GSRs and DCMs c. include workshops for new committee chairs, etc., who have not been GSRs 5. Add email option to PP&M where only mailing is mentioned (page 6 and 13)

#### Policy Changes – separate votes

1. Combine PP&M, job descriptions and Committee guidelines in an Area 67 Service Manual If we can combine in one place all our operating documents, this will make them easier to find and to audit at a maximum of every five years when doing our Area Inventory. Currently the Committee guidelines and PP&M are only looked at when changes are made and are not consistent with changing times.

2. Election of Alt Chairperson by third legacy Unlike most other Area Officer Alternate positions, the Alternate Chair has clearly defined and critical responsibilities other than filling in for the Chair if needed. This is similar the Alternate Delegate who is elected by the 3rd Legacy Procedure. Election of other officers and committee chair by majority instead of plurality with many individuals standing for positions, an election can be decided by someone receiving a very small percentage of the votes cast. This motion will require a procedure for multiple ballots and provisions for tie votes.

3. Adding past Delegate Responsibilities to Service Manual Our past delegates in the Area are a remarkable resource that the Area is lucky to have. The adhoc committee feels that a statement in the service manual could serve to encourage the involvement of past Delegates in the Area and reemphasize to the fellowship that our past Delegates are available to help with Area concerns.

# The Committee APPROVED all three parts of this motion.

Announcements – Bella L.

**Close Meeting** – Responsibility Statement

## **Area Assembly Meeting**

#### Sunday, April 10th

## **Open of General Assembly** – Christina S.

• Opened meeting with moment of silence followed by the Serenity Prayer

#### Preamble to SETA Policies and Procedures Manual – Bella L.

Read the Preamble to the SETA Policies and Procedures Manual

#### Area Committee Roll Call – Kathleen T.

- There was a total of 92 voting members present at the April 2022 Assembly.
- 79 in person + 13 online = 92 total
- See Pages 23-24 for table of Area Committee Roll Call

#### Recognize New GSRs, Past Delegates & Guest(s) - Christina S.

• All GSRs, Past Delegates and Guests

### Secretary's Minutes - Chelsey G.

• January Area Committee Minutes were accepted as corrected

### Treasurer's Report - Reino F.

Accepted as presented

#### 2023 Budget Presented - Ron S.

#### **Delegate Report** – Kris H.

#### Good morning,

Hot off the press from GSO is an exciting opportunity to be a part of our Big Book's future. Call for stories – Fifth Edition of the Book Alcoholics Anonymous —Big Book with a deadline for submissions: October 31, 2022. Online portal information has been forwarded through SETA ANNOUNCE.

I want to thank you all for your participation in the Roundtables, and I look forward to hearing the reports in a little while. I will be taking all of that feedback with me to Brooklyn when I leave for Conference week on April 23rd. I'm so grateful that I had the opportunity to attend the Board weekend back in January, as it really helped get rid of the travel anxiety that I had been carrying around for a long time. I found out that we will be allowed to use our computers during the entirety of the conference, so I should be able to find time to compile a daily journal to send y'all, but no promises.

Last month, I attended SWRDA in Oklahoma City. For those of you who don't know, this is a longstanding gathering of the Past Delegates of the 11 Areas in the Southwest Region who gather together to meet with the current panel Delegates to share their experience and help prepare them for the Conference. No current agenda items are discussed, as the intent is to discuss or recommend actions that might supersede the function of the Area or Conference, but to give the new Delegates a sense of what to expect. Roundtable discussions very similar to those we held yesterday are conducted using past Agenda Items and old background. The support I've felt from that particular group of people is unparalleled in my service career. They actually record the whole event, which has some great presentations on various topics, and I went ahead and purchased the digital files. There are a couple of the presentations this year that focused on the spirit of rotation that I am seeking permission to share throughout our Area.

One of the other things that happens at SWRDA is that all current panel Delegates are required to present their strictly time limited Area Highlights in two minute or less, just like used to happen at each Conference. Similar to the Gratitude Dinner, I can thank Troy and his panel for doing away with that part of the

Conference. As of two years ago, the Highlights are now only published in the final Conference Reports. This is what I have submitted for my Area.

#### Southeast Texas Area (SETA) 67

Area 67 covers about 25,000 square miles with Houston, the 4<sup>th</sup> largest city in the US being the hub. Our Area encompasses not only Harris County, the country's third largest county by population but also serves 30 other counties which have a combined population of about 8 million. Although our area is the smallest geographically of the state's four areas covering less than 10% of the total area, we serve 28% of the state's population. Currently we have about 665 active groups on our roll, including 3 listed as virtual groups. Most groups seem to have resumed in person activities at full strength. Our groups comprise eighteen districts, five of which are Spanish linguistic districts. In January, the Assembly voted to continue with hybrid Assemblies for at least the remainder of 2022. Our IT committee was charged with researching the cost of equipment to conduct hybrid meetings, as the venue pricing is quite extraordinary.

Returning to some sense of normalcy, we began this year with a combined Area Assembly and SETA Convention which rotates between Houston, Beaumont and Galveston, Texas. This year's convention was held at a brand-new hotel in Houston and was very well attended. We were lucky to get both of the current Board chairs of AAWS and AA Grapevine to come and share their experience, strength and hope with us. We were also pleased to welcome representatives from Area 39 after their long trek down from Western Missouri to present a timely workshop on Bridging the Gap. It was a great way to kick start our TFC committees project to re-create and update our BTG Volunteer database. Over 1300 people attended the Convention, enjoying all of the speakers and a whole lot of coffee-on average, every attendee had at least 4 cups.

We are still learning how best to leverage GSuite as a Service tool, and recently implemented shared folders. This is a great way to pass along large piles of information such as the Conference background files with at least a semblance of security.

True to form, we continue to spend a lot of Assembly time determining how we are going to spend Assembly time. An ad hoc was appointed to review and recommend potentially rewriting our whole Policies and Procedures manual. Early indications are that the P&P along with several other documents might be combined to create an Area Service Manual. More will be revealed.

Finally, I have continued to serve the Area over the last 16 years mainly because of the people I've met and come to love and respect. I met Melissa when we served together as DCMs and on my fist ad hoc-something about PO Boxes and Mailouts. From that point, I could never have imagined the impact that she and her family would have on me and mine. Some of you may have heard about the recent passing of Dane. She was in the thoughts and prayers of all of the Past Delegates of SWRDA, but I never saw anything about it in the Area chats. As current Delegate, that may have been my responsibility. Sadly, I will be traveling to Brooklyn on the day of Dane's memorial. In any case, I wanted to share a few thoughts on the matter. I had a lot of help from the love of my life putting this together:

There are so many different reasons why we as individuals get sober, followed by so many new reasons why we stay sober, but none of us can truly comprehend what sobriety will lead us to experience in our lifetimes.

We experience on a deeper level than we've ever known before love, happiness, peace, honesty, life, laughter, connection, fears, heartbreak, trials and at times death.

What sobriety does not give us no matter when, how or why we get sober is more hours in any given day. So the time we are gifted, one day at a time is precious, ours to do with as we want and on occasion as we must.

I believe it is appropriate and important to take this moment in time to celebrate two amazing sober individuals that through the Power of God found love, happiness, peace, honesty, life, laughter, family, connection & compassion. When the cancer found one & they both experienced the fears, heartbreak, trials & recent death at the core of it all was God's Love.

Dane McAnally lived through his cancer soberly with a sense of humor, love, grace and dignity!

Melissa loved & cared for him with her whole heart in magnificent detail until his very last breath!

There are so many different reasons why we as individuals get sober, followed by so many new reasons why we stay sober, but none of us can truly comprehend what sobriety will lead us to experience in our lifetimes.

One thing that is certain is that death makes life precious & we should never be too sober to stop & celebrate each day as the gift from God that it truly is.

In love and service, Kris H.

## Alternate Delegate Report - Rick M

Good morning to my SETA friends!

I hope everyone enjoyed the round table discussions yesterday. Participating in those discussions has always been one of my favorite activities of the Area. For the first time, I understood that I had a voice in AA, and it mattered. Thank you for suiting up and showing up to participate in this process. If this is your first time to be here for the round tables, please stick around until all the reports have been given this morning. There will be an experience you must not miss. We know you will not want to miss it.

Our regional event this year is SWRAASA, which stands for Southwest Regional Alcoholics Anonymous Service Assembly. It will be held Friday October 7<sup>th</sup> through Sunday the 9<sup>th</sup> in Tulsa Oklahoma at the Renaissance Tulsa Hotel. If there is any way you can attend, I highly recommend doing so. It is a great way to learn about the various service positions in AA as well as learn about our Traditions, Concepts and history. Registration and hotel information can be found on our webpage under the "Events" link near the bottom of the menu on the left side of the homepage. Also, I bought a few flyers.

Thank you for this opportunity to serve our Area and our fellowship.

In love and service,

**Rick Mueller** 

Alternate Delegate Area 67/Panel 71

2022 SETA Convention Final Report – Debi F.

2023 SETA Convention Update – Annette C.

Area Committee Adhoc – Melissa R.

Motion for Assembly Voting by Count Off Method – Kathleen T. APPROVED (see page 2) Policies and Procedures Adhoc - The Assembly APPROVED parts 1 and 2. The third part FAILED.

Job Description Adhoc – Pam F.

Area Inventory Adhoc – Troy B-D.

2023/2024 Assembly Meeting Place Bid Information – Bella L.

**ROUND TABLE REPORTS – Sending the Delegate informed bot not instructed!** 

## Unfinished Business

#### **Open Positions**

- La Vina Committee Chair
- Intergroupa Hispano Del SW (D66 and 67)
- Brazos Valley Intergroup -Rachel stood and was voted in

#### <u>New Business</u> Regional Pool Lottery -SCAP/Grapevine/Literature

#### **Open Position**

• Newsletter Editor – Tracy stood and was voted in

Motion for Assembly Voting by Count Off Method – APPROVED

Motion for Policy and Procedures Manual Editorial Changes – APPROVED

Motion to combine Policy and Procedures Manual, Job Descriptions and Committee Guidelines in an Area 67 Service Manual - APPROVED

Motion to elect Alternate Chair by third legacy – APPROVED

Motion to Elect other officers and committee chairs by majority instead of plurality – APPROVED Motion to add past Delegate Responsibilities to Service Manual – OPPOSED

#### Announcements – Bella L.

**Close Meeting** – Responsibility Statement

## **Service Committee Reports**

#### Archives

- Your Archives committee is setting up presentations in SETA, all types. 1502 Group in Conroe, 4-30-22
- Waiting for decision on date for presentation at D 31 business meeting
- Also Districts 81 & 82.
- Committee working together, to be more understanding with SETA portal, and linking of all devices.
- Continuing with getting Repository in order.
- This is keeping it simple.
- By the way, is tomorrow the 83rd anniversary of the 1st 10 copies of the Big Book being delivered to Bill W. & Hank P. at AA's 1st office, in Parkhurst, NJ. 4-10-39.

Yours in service,

Mike D., Chair - mike.d@aa-seta.org

## CPC – Don P.

**CPC Committee Purpose** – "Members of C.P.C. committees inform professionals and future professionals about A.A.— what we are, where we are, what we can do, and what we cannot do. They attempt to establish better communication between A.A.s and professionals, and to find simple, effective ways of cooperating without affiliating." – reprinted from Cooperation with the Professional Community Workbook, page 5, with permission from A.A. World Services, Inc.

#### For 2022, the CPC Committee Chairs and initiatives are as follows:

- Current committee chairs:
  - o CPC Chair Don P.
  - o Alternate CPC Chair Open
  - o CPC Secretary Open
  - o CPC Veteran/Military/Police/Fire Department Chair Bill A.
  - o CPC Clergy Chair Open
  - o CPC Hospital Chair Open
  - o CPC Court Chair Open
  - o CPC Schools Professionals Chair Open
  - o CPC Disaster Response Chair Bill A.
  - o CPC Business/Employee Assistance Program Chair Open

• Members of the committee have continued to stay engaged and active with several networking groups, such as The Recovery Network, Houston Recovery Initiative and the Texas Chapter of the Social Workers Association. • Prior to our lives changing with Covid, there was a lot of energy and work toward getting our 12-step Hospital Program established for Area 67, similar to the one currently being implemented in Western Washington (Area 72) and Central California (Area 72). We are staying in touch with the decision makers and looking forward to the time when the environment improves.

 The committee has begun an outreach initiative aimed at the Harris County Criminal Courts. The D.W.I. Courts established a program called S.O.B.E.R., which stands for Saving Ourselves by Education and Recovery. Our goal is to finds ways to cooperate and support their efforts and take the A.A. message of recovery to those working their way through the legal system.

#### We need your help:

The possibilities to carry the message by reaching out to professionals is nearly limitless. But we need people, lots of people. We need members, groups and districts to learn how to carry the message by being "Friendly with our Friends" as Bill liked to call it. • If your District doesn't have a committee, consider starting one, and standing for its chair position • Attend the Area CPC meeting, any AA member can attend and be a committee member, you do not have to have an elected position to join in.

#### So, Join us:

We meet the first Monday of each month at 7:30pm at the Spring Branch Memorial Club, or you can join via ZOOM, meeting ID: 632 634 860 (<u>https://zoom.us/i/632634860</u>).

For more information or to help, please contact us at

" cpc@aa-seta.org

In Service,

Don P. – Chairperson, Cooperation with Professional Community (CPC) Committee, SETA (Area 67)

CFC – Roland R.

Purpose: Southeast Texas Area SETA CFC Carries the message of Alcoholics Anonymous to the suffering alcoholic behind the walls of local county and state jails as well as state and federal prisons. We meet the third Wednesday of every month at 7:30pm at Intergroup 5151 Mitchell Dale suite B Houston TX 77092.

Committee members attended the Southwest Texas Area conference in Round Rock TX. Committee members also attended the Unity Conference in Bryan TX.

We're doing 11 prison meetings a week. Harris County jail has suspended volunteer from coming in till further notice.

Our SETA CFC Conference committee meets the third Wednesday of every month at 6:30pm 5151 Mitchell Dale suite B. IF you want to be part of a great event come out and met the chair Harold B. The date is September the 9th- 11<sup>th</sup> here at this hotel the Doubletree.

Oklahoma Correction Conference May 7th, 2022.

Six National Corrections Conference November 11th through the 13th.

SETA CFC Chair Love and Service Roland R.

Finance – Ron S. No Report

Grapevine – Luis A. *No Report* 

IT – Jorge F. *No Report* 

La Viña - Open Position

Literature – Hilton L. *No Report* 

**Multi-Lingual** – Armando H. No report submitted

**Newsletter** – Open No report submitted

PI – Kristi A.

PI Area Committee continues to meet monthly on the 4<sup>th</sup> Tuesday of each month.

The committee had some special opportunities the past few months to do Public Information service work.

Which included:

Attending the Healthy U Mental Health and Wellness Health Fair at Lone Star College in Tomball

Public Information Table set up at the Unity Conference in District 33

Short PI presentation at District 70's monthly meeting.

Attended the North American CPC/PI Virtual Conference- learned a lot with all the different topics and presenters

The committee is excited about the opportunities for sharing on the Area Shared Drive.

Committee would like to share the information about the National PI &CPC Working group. They have a monthly meeting that focuses on AA and the internet. More will be discussed at today's break out session.

GSO has informed the fellowship that two new PSA's have been released to tv stations nationally. GSO is requesting help, specifically from Public Information Committees, to contact these media outlets to encourage the PSA is shown. The PI Committee will be following up with this request.

District happenings:

D(31) placing books and racks

- D(81) placing local psa ads
- D(40) placing local magazine ads and looking into Chronicles Facebook ads
- D(70) placing books and contacting Ellington for placement of large pamphlet rack

SCAP – Deborah M. No Report

**TFC** – Keyndal W. Don M Alternate Chair

My name is Don McCurdy, currently serving as the Alternate Chair for the TFC Committee. Our committee chair, Kendyl W, is scheduled to be out of state cannot attend today.

The Treatment Facilities Committee has mainly been focused on establishing guidelines for the Bridge the Gap program. We are also putting together information for Bridge the Gap meetings in treatment facilities to spur interest in those "graduating" from those facilities in finding and attending a meeting near them.

Districts 31, 40, and 52 are currently active at TFC meetings, we would like to encourage the rest of the districts TFC reps join us. Our meetings are all held on Zoom for the convenience of our distant districts. The Zoom information is on the SETA website on the TFC page.

Districts 40 and 52 are actively taking meetings into treatment facilities and could use some assistance from groups close to those districts.

Some of our district members have been doing an excellent job of contacting treatment facilities. We are generating a current list of treatment facilities in SETA and are contacting them to determine if meetings are wanted or needed.

We are also interested in a identifying a contact for each district, including Spanish speaking, to enter their district's Bridge the Gap volunteers and coordinate requests for volunteers. We are willing to send a member of the committee to any district meeting to explain the program and hand off detailed instructions on how to create volunteers in the system.

The committee now has both a secretary and a treasurer. A big thank you to Tina A and Taylor C for stepping up.

Don M

Alternate Chair

Treatment Facilities Committee

#### Brazos Valley Intergroup - Open Position

#### Houston Intergroup - Joel G.

Houston Intergroup will be holding an Open House in August of this year, date TBA Workshop on Steps 6 & 7 - Saturday, 30th of April 2022 10:00 am - 2:00 pm, folks can find scheduled events on the Events Page of the <u>aahouston.org</u> website District 31, 40 and 70 meets at Intergroup, CFC, IT

A printed meeting guide is in the works, timeline is TBD but possibly towards the end of the year (may include district 90, College Station and Hispanic Districts, TBD

Reminder that the Meeting Finder on aahouston,org is searchable via **district** as well as location, day of the week, time of day and type of meeting

Lots of things going on at Houston Intergroup!!! New Service opportunities!!!

Ad hoc - Communications/PI (for inside the Fellowship) and Job Description Events and Facilities Committee has been formed

If there are questions regarding these committees, please contact Erin K Chair if the Board for Intergroup

Attendance is up at the BOT and Delegates meeting! averaging 10 in person and upwards of 15 on Zoom!

Call Volumes report attached. I'll have printed copies available and does not need to be distributed electronically

Thank you, Joel Garza 773-562-1426

#### 9<sup>th</sup> District Intergroup – Ray F. *No Report*

## Oficina Intergroupa Hispana (D63, 64, 65) - Dina S.

Oficina Integrupal Hispana de Alcoholicos Anonimos

4800 West 34<sup>th</sup> Street, Suite C-5, Houston, TX 77092

The Twelve Steps Committee

Works by taking calls of people asking for information about meetings of Alcoholic Anonymous groups.

We give them information about groups closest to their area, about 2-3 groups.

We have a phone line that is rotated around by members of the committee.

Hotline: 281.727.6648

Message to Women Committee

This committee has a phone line where women request information about what is Alcoholic Anonymous. They provide the interested person with information of the closest groups to their area.

Hotline: 281.794.3294

Media and Public Relations Committee

They currently share every Friday on Radio Maria (a local Catholic radio station) in which they give us an hour from 5-6pm

#### Archive Committee

This committee is in charge of maintaining the information for the bulletin "Transmitelo" up to date, updates the directories of the Houston area groups and Alcoholic Anonymous events.

#### Special Events Committee

This committee is in charge of collecting funds for event related with Alcoholic Anonymous.

#### **Treatment Committees**

Pending – We have no service members in this committee.

## Intergroupa Hispano Del SW (D66 & 67) – OPEN

#### Area Inventory Adhoc Report

We have created a six-person committee and will commence after this assembly. In agreement with the Area Chair, I didn't want to start until we got reports from the P&P and Area Committee ad hoc. We want to repeat work they have done.

We will be leading a workshop in July and then we will go out to the districts to repeat the process.

We look forward to hearing from you all.

Troy

#### January 2022 SETA Convention Report

Dear SETA Family,

THANK YOU THANK YOU THANK YOU!!! I am so grateful for each and every person who participated in the 59th SETA Convention!!! Boy, I hope you enjoyed the event as much as I did. I want to especially thank those who were unable to attend due to COVID and were generous enough to exchange their full registration fees for a Virtual Attendance link. These retained registration fees helped us to reduce the negative impact on our budget caused by the pandemic.

I want to thank Ronald C. for stepping up at the very last minute to serve as Voice for the convention. It's a heavy time commitment for the weekend, and physically demanding as well. He didn't hesitate when called upon to be of service, and he led us through the weekend with humor, joy, and enthusiasm.

Thank you to Tina S, the alternate convention Treasurer, and Ron Shaw, Area Finance Chair, for stepping up to handle the money collection and accounting over the convention weekend when our Treasurer fell ill. Having Tina and Ron step up gave me such confidence and assurance. I knew I didn't need to worry about what was going on with the money accounting all weekend, and that was a great relief! A shout out to Tina's husband, Shane, for pitching in to help them.

If you were not aware, Allise B., Betsy G., James B., Jorge F., Marshall W., and Ryan R. really worked hard throughout the weekend in conjunction with our taper, Lee Y. (and his team), to provide outstanding audio/visual services for the event. Due to Allise's efforts, we were able to have Zoom projections of the speakers in the Al-Anon, Hispanic, and Overflow breakout rooms at no cost. And a big shout out of thanks to Districts 32 and District 52 for providing their Zoom equipment. Betsy, Jorge, Marshall, and Ryan supported the Zoom broadcasts for our virtual convention attendees, as well as the Area Committee, Area Assembly, and GSR Workshops. All of the beautiful historic posters, videos, and the sound and projection equipment in the ballrooms were provided by Lee at no charge, saving the convention thousands of dollars in audio/visual costs that the hotel would have charged. I'm so grateful to all of these individuals for their contributions.

Due to Veronica Mendez's diligence and enthusiasm, we had hospitality contributions from the Santa Fe Group, Serenity Group (Woodlands), This Side of the Lake Group, and Districts 40, 52, 70 and 90. Due to their

generosity, Veronica's team was able to offer low-cost food and snacks throughout the weekend to convention attendees without utilizing the \$2000 allocated for hospitality in the convention budget. Thank you to Veronica and those groups and districts for your contributions!

I don't have the time or space to call out every single convention committee chair for all that they did to make our event so great, but we were really blessed to have each and every one of you who was willing to commit for the weekend to making sure our event was wonderful! Archives, Coffee, CFC, Entertainment, First Timers, Grapevine, Greeters, Hospitality, Literature, Marathon Meetings, Multi-Lingual, Registration, Scholarships, Security, Speaker Hosts/Gifts/Readers, Signs/Banners/Flowers, and YPAA - and all of the SETA Area Standing Committee representatives who brought their displays and information. Thank you each and every one, along with all of your alternates and volunteers!!!

I want to recognize my co-chair, Tony W., Beth L., the Voice, Treasurer Lauren D., and Greeter's chair, Dan M., who all worked so hard during the planning stages and were unable to attend due to falling ill to COVID the week of the event. We missed you being there and give thanks for everything you contributed. I could not have done this without you.

#### Attendance

We had a lower attendance than the average SETA Convention. Initially, we chose a smaller facility to reduce the guest room block requirements (which are always difficult to meet when the convention is held in Houston) and anticipated a lower attendance because of this.

The surge in COVID in the weeks leading up to the event made us very apprehensive about how many people would actually show up. So overall, we are very happy with these numbers!

AA/AI-Anon = 1,327 Virtual = 97 Scholarships Given = 42

#### Financials

My hope was that this event would not experience a loss, and we worked hard to ensure success. However, I have learned over the years that the SETA Convention is not about making money, it is about doing the footwork and leaving the results to God. It has always been about carrying the message of AA and service, showing newcomers how to have fun in sobriety, and exposing everyone to our service committees and opportunities. I am proud that we knocked those goals out of the park.

Losses are attributed to lower attendance than previous conventions due to and space restrictions and the pandemic, along with higher-than-expected coffee consumption/cost. We had planned for 203 gallons for the weekend, and you all drank 333 gallons!!! This resulted in a 61% increase in coffee consumption and related charges.

#### Convention Loss = \$2,905.70

#### Handoff

We were able to give left over registration and hospitality materials, etc., to Annette C. from Beaumont on Sunday at the end of the convention. I went to visit her a few weeks ago and we reviewed all of the processes and lessons learned from the 2022 convention so that she is set up for success. Please reach out to her to see how you can be of service to the convention. The committee should have Area-wide representation and never be the burden of just one district. WE stay sober together!!!

#### Gratitude

When Rick Mueller contacted me in 2019 and asked if I would be willing to stand for convention chair, I was honored to be considered and excited about the opportunity. I have served on many convention committees in the past 31 years, and I worked in event planning professionally for 9 years. I truly love the experience of bringing together alcoholics of all backgrounds and lengths of sobriety to expand our collective AA knowledge and networks. My first convention was at 9 months of sobriety in 1991, and I still remember the impact the speakers and the fellowship had on me. I believe that campouts, conventions, roundups, workshops,

jamborees, speaker jams, and anything else that we do to bring a bunch of drunks together to have fun in sobriety while learning about AA as a Whole (and the service opportunities) is KEY to ensuring the future of Alcoholics Anonymous while combating the limited scope view that members have when only participating in their home group and/or small local gatherings.

I challenge all of you to step up to serve our convention and other service committees, and to expand your AA network and experience. In fact, step up to serve in any way that you can! There is so much work to be done. I promise you will never regret it! Even when things are difficult, and you have many opportunities to truly apply the principles and traditions to overcome challenges, you will never regret it! That has been my experience. I know I am a much better AA member because of the service opportunities I've accepted - more changed by this than by the many AA meetings I have attended. In the words of the beloved Oldtimers, "Just get in the #@&!! car!" You will not regret it!

The theme of this convention was "...happily and usefully whole." I feel that all who helped to make this event a success were able to experience this promise from the Foreword to the Twelve Steps & Twelve Traditions. I know that it is true for me. Thank you for trusting me and thank you for my sobriety.

Love in service, Debi F. Debi.F@aa-seta.org

# **District Committee Member (DCM) Reports**

District 10 - OPEN

District 20 – George S. No Report

District 31 – Cheryl M.

Greetings from District 31, I'm Cheryl McCurdy., currently serving as the district 31 DCM.

Our District is located in the northeast corner of the Southeast Texas Area 67. We meet the third Sunday of every month from 2pm-4pm at the 494-meeting hall in Porter, Texas. The exceptions are our April and June meetings, which we moved by one week to avoid the conflict with the Easter and Father's Day. We continuing to hold our District meetings in a hybrid format (combined Zoom and in-person). This is both to accommodate those with health concerns, and for our members who would have difficulty attending in person because of distance (we have a large geographic area) or other time constraints.

I'm happy to report that we have filled all our trusted servant positions except for Information Technology.

In March, District 31 sponsored a Safety Workshop which was hosted by the 1502 Group. It was very informative, and the skit was hilarious but also pointed out some of the safety issues which can (an do) occur. Our Alt DCM, Karon M did a great job putting this event together!

We have a How to Chair a Meeting Workshop hosted by the Recovery Essential of Trinity group scheduled for May 21st and are also in the planning process for 6th & 7th Step Workshop in July which will be hosted by the Spring Group. We would love to see you all at these workshops!

We continue to pray for the health and safety of all as we trudge the road of happy destiny.

In Loving Service, Cheryl DCM District 31

#### District 32 – Marcia C.

2022 is off to a great start! In addition to the great crew members we had, we've had some recent additions, including some old-timers who have come back to lend a hand. I'm thrilled to announce that all but two of our Committee Chairs are filled or refilled:

Our fantastic IT Chair, Kevin B, has hooked the Brazos Valley Intergroup into the Meeting Guide App, so you can now find our meetings the 21st century way! Please come over and see us!

We had another successful Unity Conference in February with great speakers and great food (and I only overate a little this year). I'm very proud to say a member of my home group won the combread contest, although we're beginning to think the chili part of the contest might be rigged because New Hope has been winning it every year for several years now. We're very grateful to Hilton L. and Kristi A. from the Area Literature and PI Committees, respectively, for coming over, and we enjoyed having Chris G, the DCM from District 52, and Dan G from the Communications Improvement Committee in District 82 join us.

When we did the countdown at the Unity Conference, our precious new- comer whispered in my ear to ask if she should give back her other Big Book since I had just given her a new one! I told her she could pass it on to a newcomer as soon as she is working with one.

In the good news/bad news department, we are ecstatic that we have 37 GSRs out of 38 groups! Plus, an additional 13 Alternate GSRs! Now the only slight hitch is convincing some of them to do the service rather than just carrying the title. With our big literature order, we brought in not only new Service Manuals for District members but also GSR pamphlets we distributed in February and Group pamphlets we distributed in March. I have noticed that the problem with this plan is that it is reaching the GSRs who are attending, so my Alternate, Tony, and I will be working on delivering the pamphlets to the GSRs who are missing in action.

We had our Agenda Item Workshop on April 2nd. We discussed in January whether the GSRs wanted to explain the Agenda Items to their groups, invite me & Tony to their groups to explain them, have a workshop, or some better idea. They returned in February with their group consciences' choice and voted for a workshop. As mentioned above, we seem not to have completed our mission to help GSRs understand their role, so disappointingly few came to the workshop. Perhaps they thought their groups were coming without them, but that would still make it hard to get their group consciences together. And unfortunately, their group members did not come in droves either. Those of us who did attend had a good time and a great 6' sandwich. We're still working on the Willy Wonka machine to share the food with the Zoom participants like Kris and Rick, who were kind to participate from afar, as were an AA historian who had helped me prepare and my service sponsor.

Our Alt DCM, Tony A, is about to embark on scheduling workshops with our Committee Chairs. Rereading last year's report reminded me that I pledged during the Western Regional Forum to hold another sharing session on Race & Racism at either the District or Area level, so that will also be upcoming, and we welcome everyone to join us. Details will come through SETA-ANNOUNCE and be on <u>aa-seta.org/dcms/33</u>.

We took the idea of District business cards from the Public Information Workbook. Tony mocked up a draft, complete with QR code, and we now have 2,500 cards to distribute to newcomers and doctors, at hotels and workshops, on bulletin boards and display racks.

We continue to hold hybrid District meetings in-person and online at 1pm the third Saturday of each month. Any AA member is welcome to attend either way. The Zoom numbers are always posted on the district 33 page: 450 352 4520 pwd: rule62.

Respectfully submitted,

Allise B.

#### District 33 – No Report District 40 – Jackie S.

My name is Jackie S., and it is an honor to serve as DCM for <u>District 40</u>! Serving as DCM, I have plenty of opportunities to get others involved!

D40 plans to continue meeting on Zoom for the remainder of 2022. The Meeting ID and passcode are posted on our D40 SETA webpage. Our meeting time is the  $2^{nd}$  Tuesday of each month from 7:00 – 9:00 PM.

Kendyl W, the TFC Chair was available to visit our February meeting. Matt G is currently our D40 TFC Rep and between the two of them, we learned a lot about what the TFC Committee does and how we can participate. The focus was on Bridging the Gap utilizing their worldwide data base.

At this meeting, our CPC Rep, Bill A, announced that he is now serving in the Disaster Relief position. And our Archives Rep, Mike B, announced that he is serving as the new Alt Chair for Archives. I'm so proud of our district members continuing on in their service work!

At the beginning of the year, we ran a PSA in an ad in the free Community Impact newspaper for the Katy and Cy-Fair circulations in the January, February and March editions! We are also considering some sort of social media in the future. Theresa S, our PI Rep, invited a representative from the Houston Chronicle to our March district meeting to help answer our questions on choosing the right type of media for our budget. This is the only source we can find for the large Spring Branch and Memorial areas in our district. We still haven't made a decision but hope to do so soon.

We took time to discuss and comment on the background samples of the Final Agenda Item – Plain Language big book. Marcus S was the recorder. On Tuesday during our April meeting, we will vote and send the results to Kris H.

I am happy to announce that on July 23<sup>rd</sup> we will be hosting our annual Traditions Dinner in person! Ron C has agreed to speak on the Traditions, and we have reserved the Church of the Holy Apostles in Katy, TX. I will definitely send the flyer out via SETA Announce when it is ready. Our Alt DCM, Doug D, has the privilege of planning this grand event! We have a lot of participation from our District 40 members. Everyone seems to be hyped; it should be a great party! With lots of giveaways! Please join us!

I am grateful to be here today! Best Wishes!

Jackie.s@aa-seta.org

DCM D40

District 51 – Gordon W. No Report

#### District 52 – Chris G.

Hi, I'm Chris G., DCM reporting for District 52.

Our District meetings are held every 1st Tuesday of the month at the Ft Bend Regional Council in Stafford, TX. For those who wish to continue their virtual attendance, we provide this as a Hybrid Meeting utilizing Google Meet. We seem to have leveled off with our attendance being an 80/20 ratio of those attending in-person vs those attending virtually.

Having filled the TFC Chair position (in January), and JUST filled the CFC Chair position (this week), District 52 Group Members remain very active in these areas, bringing AA Meetings and Literature into our local Treatment and Corrections Facilities. I must say these positions have been filled none too soon! Within the last 4 weeks, one existing Treatment Facility, 2-new Treatment facilities, and 1 Out-of-District Referral have approached us to bring daily meetings into their facilities. Quite overwhelming for D52 resources, but we are coordinating with nearby District 40, District 32, and District 51 to bring meetings into these facilities. What a wonderful SETA family we have, that our Area Districts have come together to make this happen! As for the DCM's, the TFC's, **our new** District 52 TFC, and all the Group Participants from those Districts,I cannot commend you enough! You people Rock!

District 52 is still focused on increasing service participation at the District Level and Group Level. Unfortunately, we have not added any new GSRs since the time of my last report in January 2022. We do have the same five dedicated GSRs regularly attending our District Meetings. Our District Group visits are revealing that GC activities are increasing, even though many are struggling with autonomy issues (to say it nicely... but we do have a new group formed from that), Zoom Meeting Member participation, AND many struggling to fill positions! Of course, we will continue to contact and visit the remaining Groups in our District as we identify them. Right now, our most updated information lists (36) active groups in our District, (8) of those yet to be visited and verified, AND of which (7) are really AA Meetings registered as Groups. Most of our D52 Panel are involved with contacting groups and with updating the District List information on the district "Shared Drive". Finally, in our efforts to increase service participation, we are making plans to co-host another workshop titled: Working with Others.

Well again, I MUST mention how blessed I am.... to have such a great panel of Officers and Committee Chairpersons! They continue to "step up" with remarkable enthusiasm, with a genuine dedication to the welfare of our AA groups, to AA as a whole.

Respectfully submitted to my Friends in Service,

Christopher Gurecky

DCM, District 52

District 60 – OPEN No report

District 62 – Ricardo D. No Report

District 63 – Ricardo R. *No Report* District 64 – Arturo B.

Our District has 17 groups of which are present from 8 to 12 groups, we meet every Saturday at 6:00 p.m. with the table, committees and representatives of general services,

We share the groups of our area on Thursday weekdays. Our District 64 has the committees of La Vina, Literature and Correctional which we meet on Tuesdays every 15 days.

We are also present at the meeting of the organizing committee of the Hispanic Assembly of the State of Texas in District 64 which will be held on May 27, 28 and 29, 2022, at the Sheraton Hotel located at 15700 John F Kennedy Blvd., Houston, TX 77032.

We will continue to petition the U.S. and Canadian Hispanic Conventions. We attended the Area 67 Assemblies. We also met with the Houston Area Hispanic Districts.

Sincerely: We study the service manual every 15 days

MCD: Arturo Borrego 281.433.2158

ALT: Marco López 281.881.3458

### **District 65** – Henrique G.

He wishes them to be enjoying complete sobriety.

Our report says so we meet on Saturdays at 6 pm. Esecto that this next assembly or convention is Hispanic ho of the area of the mushroom is changed to the Thursday before the dates of such event.

This District has 14 groups 12 haven their RSGs owners 6 alternates.

We count three committed: The Vineyard, Correctional and Literature.

We attend and contribute with presence and support to the meetings of the area There have also been Hispanic events such as our state assembly to be held next May of this year.

The U.S. and Canada national convention in Boston, Massachusetts in September of this same year.

MCD Henriquez G.

The Alternate: Isidro G.

#### District 66 - Armando A.

District 66 currently has 19 active groups and 3 inactive groups.

We have RSG meetings every Saturday at 6:00pm. And they are suspended when there are Area Assembly Assemblies and Hispanic conventions or some other AA event.

We have the service desk, La Vina committee, Corrections Committee and Literature Committee.

We share with the groups of our district on Fridays according to our roll of compartments and also with any other district group.

MCD: Armando A. 832.495.5725

Alternate MCD: Rogelio A. 281.673.9241

## District 70 – Deborah T.

- District 70 meets the second Wednesday of each month at 7:00pm for our monthly business meetings.
- Our face-to-face meetings have been going well, last month we had 26 people in attendance. They are held at Kelly's Restaurant in Pasadena, Texas. We have food and fellowship at 6pm and the meeting starts at 7pm.
- District 70 hosts a guest speaker each month at our business meeting. In March we had Christy, the chair from Area 67 Public Information. Christy was full of valuable information and the district had some good questions to ask of her.
- District 70 is giving away a Grapevine subscription at each district meeting in a drawing. This encourages people to support Grapevine.
- District 70 spring workshop will be held at the Clear Creek Club House on April 16<sup>th</sup> from 2-4pm. Topics covered will be AA Guidelines: AA and the Club and What is the AA Group, meeting and homegroup. When visiting groups and attending meetings within my district there is much confusion about homegroups, club houses versus AA, and tradition blunders regarding interaction with Clubhouses. EX: What is your homegroup, answer the Clear Creek Club.
- District 70 voted to move forward with a Unity Day. Committee chair will be elected in April and budget approved in May. Unity Day will be a free event for anyone to attend. We will have lunch, guest speaker, Guest speaker focused on service, children's activities, dunk booth (me inside), other adult activities. We will be inviting all area committee chairs to attend and set up a table for their committee and give a 10-minute talk from the podium regarding their committee and how to get involved. Intergroup will be invited to attend as well. Additionally, there will be door prizes, really good ones!!!!
- Last Call, our fantastic newsletter grew to is full of vital district, area, group, and state information. You can view our monthly newsletter on our District 70 webpage. Sara B. continues to amaze us all with the informative articles she creates for the newsletter regarding many facets of AA.
- District 70 now has an alternate DCM. Lanier Y. was voted in at our March meeting. We meet several
  weeks ago, and Lanier will be taking over alternate Treasurer from me to learn about District 70
  finances, he will be attending all of the men's' meetings in our district and asking to speak at their next
  Group Conscious.
- District 70 has the following committee chair positions open; CFC, TFC, Finance and Budget, Literature, Intergroup Liaison, and CPC. We are hopeful that we get an alternate treasurer and alternate secretary before the end of the year so that they can become familiar with the role and step into some pretty amazing shoes.

Sidney P. stood for Archives committee chair in January and was voted in. Art G. stood for Grapevine Committee chair in January and was voted in. in August and was voted in. We are excited to have them both on board.

 As DCM I continue visit meetings in my District and ask for an invitation to their group conscious to make a presentation on district 70 and get contact information for the group to add to our registrar list. To date I have visited 39 of our 51 groups. I have attended 16 G.C. meetings. Challenges in reaching out to our groups continue to be:

- Many groups that are active do not have scheduled group conscious meetings and some groups do not believe in electing GSR's or participating in District or Area.
- Participation in District 70 by GSR's and alternates, and AA members is still low, considering the number of active groups that are in our district. We are grateful for all the GSRs and Alts. that attend as well as several newer members of AA that have begun showing up to learn more about service at the district level and to volunteer for committees.
- District 70 still has many open positions within our district, I trust that our Higher Power will provide the trusted servants that our district so needs.

I wanted to thank Laura O. our dedicated secretary, Just R. our fantastic registrar and impromptu IT person who has assisted many district members in setting up their g-mail accounts. Matt B. our treasurer, Sara B. our world-famous newsletter chair and Charlie W. our PI committee chair, Sidney P-archives, Art G. grapevine, and Lanier Y. new alt-DCM. District 70, and I, would not be where it is today without their service and loyalty. Thanks to all the GSR's and alternates, as well as new members and visitors, which continue to show up and support District 70.

### District 81 – Keith M.

<u>State of the district:</u> The district remains strong despite continued issues with COVID. We still use Zoom to accommodate all attendees at our meetings. The groups have started allocating 7<sup>th</sup> tradition money back to the district and the committees are fully funded again this year. Contributions are at pre COVID levels. Attendance at district meetings have been well attended and the committees and groups are very busy carrying the message.

<u>Archives Committee</u>: Our committee has recruited 3 new members and will be busy working on our Group History binder, possibly revamping our District 81 display board, reviewing some audio speaker tapes, and plan on making various presentations on A.A. history at our District 81 monthly meetings. We also plan on building the D81 information binder that will include meeting minutes, agendas, treasurer reports, committee committee correspondence, and various flyers of events happening in our district.

<u>Correctional Facility (CFC)</u>: The CFC committee has been busy with meetings being help at Carol Young here and there. We are still having trouble getting into Galveston County, but we continue to talk with them. We are hoping to be allowed back in soon. Literature is flowing into the facilities. We also attended the regional committee conference.

Public Information / Cooperation w/ Professional Community PI/CPC: Tim and his committee are rock stars!!! This committee has been very busy this year with various Billboards in our area. They have also been placing ads in local magazines and handouts. They continue to come up with new ways to reach the alcoholic that stills suffers using QR codes and handouts to lead newcomers to local resources.

<u>Grapevine</u>: This committee has struggled a bit this year but recently has a new Chair and is planning several events to drive Grapevine awareness and revenue: they are looking to have a grapevine subscription drive and host workshops in our District.

<u>Literature</u>: This is another Committee affected by COVID and now has a new Chair that has taken the bull by the horns. Several groups have regular literature meetings as result that highlight different AA literature each week. They are also looking to do great things this quarter and are planning several events.

**Finance & Budget (F&B):** We have a strong F&B and remain fully funded for 2022. They continue to meet and accommodate the ever-changing budget as committees have gotten busy late this year.

<u>Treatment Facilities (TFC)</u>: The TFC Committee is currently holding meetings on a regular basis at 5 treatment facilities. They go once a month to each and continue to carry the message. They hold workshops to grow committee membership on a regular basis. They have been very busy this quarter as well.

<u>Newsletter:</u> This is a new committee with the goal to highlight events, share stories of recovery and make announcements in the district. We are currently seeking a Chair for this committee.

**Workshops:** This committee is very strong and meets often to create new workshops for our district. Emotional sobriety is next on the list. They are also looking for new venues to hold workshops in the future. They held several workshops on these books behind the big book and a panel discussion on service in AA. We are looking forward to what this committee brings next!!!

<u>Web Committee:</u> This is also a new committee charted to Design, Build and Maintain our District website. The goal is a central repository for events, committee information, group schedule for our district ETC. The site is built and is currently being refined with content and should be fully launched next month.

All in All, the district is strong and growing. New groups are being formed and many groups are growing. It's been another challenging year and we are seeing better attendance across the board. We have many groups that still hold zoom meetings to carry the message. We are all looking forward to seeing what 2022 brings us in service!!!

District 82 – Terry C. No Report

District 90 - Art G.

Thanks to all my Committee Chairs, Alternates and GSRs that serve D-90 Update through our April 3rd meeting

- Attendance averaging over 40 and as high as 50
- All Chair Positions are filled
- D-90 Convention 2022
  - o Attendance at Convention Committee meeting (35)
  - o All is in order and moving smoothly toward our August Convention
- Groups Activities continue to increase
  - o All groups reporting an increase in attendance
  - o Numerous Group Anniversaries are taking place along with Birthday meetings no shortage of activities and group functions
- Gratitude Dinner Is on schedule for November / flyers out soon
- Tradition Workshop in September / flyers out soon

- 7th Tradition contributions are up / financially D-90 is in Great shape - Workshops are heating up with lots of activity

- o We will hold a GSR workshop in our May D-90 meeting
- o Several Step workshops taking place throughout the district
- o Sponsorship workshops are in the making All committees are Active and really getting INTO ACTION

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to Serve Art Garza

Area Committee Roll	Call April 20	22	
Position	Short Name	Committee	Assembly
Area Office	rs		
Delegate	Kris H	x	x
Alternate Delegate	Rick M	x	x
Chairperson	Christina S	x	x
Alternate Chairperson	Bella L	x	x
Registrar	Kathleen T	x	x
Alternate Registrar	Pam F	×	x
Secretary	Meece T	×	x
Alternate Secretary	Chelsey G	×	x
Treasurer	Reino F	x	x
Alternate Treasurer	Roy E		x
Standing Committee C	hairpersons		
Archives	Mike D	×	×
Alternate Archives	Mike B	×	x
CPC	Don P	x	
Alternate CPC			
CFC	Roland R	x	x
Alternate CFC	Tony W		
Finance	Ron S	x	
Alternate Finance			
Grapevine	Luis A		
Alternate Grapevine			
П	Jorge F	×	x
Alternate IT			
La Vina			
Alternate La Vina			
Literature	Hilton L		
Alternate Literature	Dan K	x	x
Multi-Lingual	Severiano M	~	x
Alternate Multi-Lingual	Sevenano M		^
Newsletter Public Information (PI)	Kriati A	~	~
Alternate PI	Kristi A	×	X
SCAP	Deborah M		~
	Deboran w		×
Alternate SCAP			
TFC	Kendyl W		×
Alternate TFC	Don McC	×	X
Convention C			
2022 Convention Chair	Debi F	×	X
2022 Convention Co-Chair	Tony W		X
2023 Convention Chair	Annette C.	X	X
2023 Convention Co-Chair			
2025 State Convention Chair	Ron C.	X	X
2025 State Convention Co-Chair			
Liaisons to Inter	rgroup		
Brazos Valley Intergroup			
Houston Intergroup	Joel G	<u> </u>	X
Ninth District Intergroup	Ray F		
Ninth District Intergroup Alternate			
Oficina Intergroupa Hispana (D63,64,65)	Dimas S		x
Intergrupa Hispano Del SW (D66 &67)			
Intergrupa Hispano Del SW Alternate (D66 &67)			

DCMs			
District 10 DCM			
District 10 Alt DCM			
District 20 DCM	George S	Х	x
District 20 Alt DCM	Sarah L		
District 31 DCM	Cheryl M	X	x
District 31 Alt DCM	Karon M	x	x
District 32 DCM	Marcia C	X	x
District 32 Alt DCM	Jeanne B		
District 33 DCM	Allise B	x	x
District 33 Alt DCM	Tony A	X	x
District 40 DCM	Jackie S	x	x
District 40 Alt DCM	Doug D	x	х
District 51 DCM	Gordon W		
District 51 Alt DCM	Stephen W		
District 52 DCM	Chris G	х	x
District 52 Alt DCM	Ricardo D		
District 60 DCM			
District 60 Alt DCM			
District 62 DCM	Ricardo D		
District 62 Alt DCM			
District 63 DCM	Ricardo R		
District 63 Alt DCM			
District 64 DCM	Arturo B		x
District 64 Alt DCM	Marco L		х
District 65 DCM	Henrique G	х	x
District 65 Alt DCM	lsidro G		
District 66 DCM	Armando A		x
District 66 Alt DCM	Rogelo D		х
District 70 DCM	Deborah T	х	x
District 70 Alt DCM	Lanier Y		
District 81 DCM	Keith M		
District 81 Alt DCM	Danny G	х	x
District 82 DCM	Terry C	х	x
District 82 Alt DCM			
District 90 DCM	Art G	х	x
District 90 Alt DCM	Julian L		